










City Council Meeting Minutes
City ofMill Valley

City Attorney Stepanicich clarified that under state law, construction contracts are
treated differently than design or engineer contracts. He noted that the law does not allow
a City to conduct a bid process based on price; instead, the City has to base its initial
decision on which design firm to select on the qualifications of the engineering firm.

In response to Ms. Britt, Mayor Berman noted that a Committee of staff and Council
selected the design firm and determined which firm was the most qualified.

City Manager McCann stated that this had been a highly selective process, and that firms
from across the state had been invited to apply. He noted that Statements of Qualifications
had been submitted, as well as team proposals, and then those who were most qualified
were interviewed and vetted by a committee. After all that, cost was then negotiated with
the top rated firm .

Abigail Burton read a letter on behalf of her father, Bob Burton, which had been
submitted to the Council earlier in the day .

Margaret Zegart, 118 Highland Lane, discussed the rising tide issue. She stated that is a
major concern for Miller Avenue and discussed public parking areas found in Amsterdam
that could be used as an example for an enhancement to Miller Avenue.

Mayor Berman closed the public hearing.

Public Works Director Barnes added that the 30% phase will include design alternatives
that were brought up in the Stetson Report and that sea level rise will be accommodated in
the Miller Avenue plan.

Councilmember Moulton-Peters thanked Public Works Director Barnes for the hard,
thoughtful, work. She noted that the City does not want to get itself into a position where
half of the plan is built and then progress stops due to lack of funds . She stated that in the
interview process BKF was the top contender and noted that she was pleased that the local
firm of Royston, Hanamoto, Alley & Abbey will be involved as well. She discussed Mr.
McCauley's ideas, noting that his concerns are good ones, however completing one piece
of the plan without the entirety, does not accomplish much. She noted that she supports
incorporating the changes to Evergreen when the rest of the construction. occurs. She
noted that some of the most difficult areas to work with are the Main Street and the
Parkway areas. She asked that these areas be reviewed by the City'S Bicycle and
Pedestrian Advisory Committee and Safe Routes to School for their input. She stated that
the Council had removed some parking spaces from the 'median in the final streetscape
design and indicated that this had been a positive step. She indicated that she supports
looking at the sea level rise issue when designing the plan and stated that she was excited
to see work begin on the project.

Councilmember Lion indicated that he concurred with Councilmember Moulton­
Peters. He noted that he was happy to see this item gaining speed and moving forward .
He noted that there had been parking spaces removed in the final plan and within that

Page 6 of8



City Council Meeting Minutes
City ofMill Valley

space, more gathering places had been added, adding that the General Plan has been
sensitive to the parking space issue. He indicated that he was comfortable with where the
project was headed and he would support the resolution.

Vice Mayor Marshall also concurred with her fellow Councilmembers. She noted that
Mr. McCauley raises a good point; however she noted that she will defer to the
suggestions of the people who have been working on this project for a long time, and do
this sort of design work for a living on this topic. She stated she supports a design catalog
as long as the spending is kept in check. She gave kudos on the Bicycle and Pedestrian
improvements that will be done sooner than later.

Mayor Berman indicated his support of the project and extended a thanks to all those
involved for their excellent work. He stated that he was not inclined to second guess the
hard work by the committee who selected BKF Engineering for the important role of
Project Management. The Mayor noted that this will be the largest Public Works project in
the City's history, so hiring someone who can focus one hundred percent of their efforts
on it was prudent. He noted that the "primary and secondary" goals as outlined in the staff
report are equally important and not hierarchical. He stated other items to monitor and
address included: a) showcasing this plan at the upcoming Community meeting, b) support
for a groundbreakinglkick-off ceremony, c) a timeline available to the public that went out
36 months, d) approaching local bike shops for input on locations for the bike racks being
discussed, e) efforts at coordinating sewer lateral replacements with SASM grants/loan
programs (since the streets are being dug up anyway), and f) monitoring the changes to the
Evergreen intersection work. Finally, Mayor Berman cautioned staff to vigorously
continue its improvement efforts on East Blithedale while this project is being constructed,
and to consider beefing up those efforts, as that street cannot afford to be neglected and in
fact will likely get used even more as Miller Avenue is tom up.

City Manager McCann stated that the City will not forget about the East Blithedale CIPs
and noted that the street is a priority which will receive improvement this summer.

It was MOVED by Councilmember Moulton-Peters and SECONDED by
Councilmember Lion to adopt Resolution No. 13-12 authorizing the City Manager to
execute a consultant services agreement with BKF Engineers for the preliminary design
and implementation plan for the Miller Avenue Streetscape Project. The Motion was
carried unanimously by a 4-0 vote, Councilmember Wachtel absent.

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS

Page 7ot8



City Council Meeting Minutes
City ofMill Valley

CITY MANAGER'S REPORTS

City Manager McCann discussed the following topics:

a. Update on Plastic Bag Ban Regulations.
b. Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) Process, Timelines and Milestones .

Councilmember Lion stated the SCS Ad Hoc committee had met last week and that he would
like to meet with Councilmember Moulton-Peters, who also attended, to discuss the meeting.

COUNCIL REOUESTS AND IDEAS FOR DISCUSSION

Councilmember Moulton-Peters stated that she is looking forward to the Council's upcoming
presentation on the future plans for East Blithedale. She noted that she would like Public Works
Director Barnes to come back to Council to discuss pending Safe Routes to School pedestrian
and bicycle facility improvement projects scheduled for summer 2013, construction.

ADJOURNMENT- To the next Regular City Council meeting which will be held on
Monday, April 1, 2013.

It was MOVED by Councilmember Lion and SECONDED by Vice Mayor Marshall to
adjourn at 9:01 p.m. to the April 1, 2013 Regular City Council meeting. The Motion carried
unanimously by a 4-0 vote, Councilmember Wachtel absent.

Approved and adopted by the
City Council of the City of Mill

V~le~!r_1_3_. _

Andr~aYOr

ATTEST:

nistrative Analyst

Page8of8


